III. PETITIONERS' ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


1. The verdicts will result in a miscarriage of justice because individuals, agents or 

employees of the Respondents, intimidated the jury and tampered with the testimony of at least 

one witness which was observed by counsel and Petitioners. The agents or employees of the 

Respondents substantially interfered with Petitioners' prosecution of their case and right to a fair 

trial which, in part, resulted in the verdicts for the Respondents. 

2. The verdicts will result in a miscarriage of justice because defense corporate 

representative and local family pastor Tom Lusk and Mart Lane, the individual who later became

IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 


Procedural History 


Petitioners and underlying Plaintiffs Clifford & Rachel Belcher, individually and as next 

friends or parents of minor lA.B., Tiffany & Clifford Belcher, individually and as next friends 

or parents of minor D.S.B. (14-C-67); Jimmy, Paulette & Ryan Blankenship (14-C-68); Emmett 

& Deborah Browning (14-C-69); Freddie Cline, individually and as next friend or parent of 

minors R.P.C. & J.I.C., Sherry Walker, Jason Walker & Timmy Walker (14-C-70); Melissa 

Cline (14-C-71); Larry & Frances Hatfield (14-C-72); Sandra Hatfield, individually and as next 

friend or parent of minors A.M.J. & A.M.1. & Angela Jordan (14-C-73); Kenneth & Rebecca 

Toler (14-C-74), individually and as next friends or parents of minor A.T.; Kenneth & Shirley 

Hatfield; Teddy, Debra & Teddy Jr. Trent (14-C-75); Gaston Hatfield (14-C-I00); Justin & 

Lacosta Hylton, individually and as next friends or parents of minors K.S.H. & H.C. (14-C-I0l); 

Robert Lusk (14-C-l 02); Danny & Amanda Mitchell, individually and as next friends or parents 

of minors L.M., D.M., K.M. & E.M. (14-C-103); Hank & Diana Toler and Hank & Crystal Toler 

(14-C-104); Timmy & Connie Walls (14-C-105); and Homer & Alice Toler, individually and as 

next friends or parents of minor N.B. T. (14-C-17 4), filed their respective Complaints beginning 

on or about May 16, 2014, in the Circuit Court of Wyoming County, West Virginia. Pgs. 1-7 

(Doc. Nos. 1 & 2). Thereafter, Petitioners acquired service of process on Defendants Dynamic 

Energy, Inc. (Dynamic) and Mechel Bluestone, Inc. (Mechel) through the West Virginia 

Secretary of State. Pg. 1. (Doc. Nos. 4-6). 

The fifteen (15) initial Petitioners filed a Motion to consolidate into the Belcher (being 

Wyoming County Civil Action No. 14-C-67) matter. Pg. 1. (Doc. No. 13). In Agreed 

Consolidation Orders entered on October 15,2014 and on November 25,2014, the Circuit Court 
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consolidated civil actions 14-C-67 through 14-C-75; 14-C-100 through 14-C-105 and 14-C-174 

into 14-C-67 (the Belcher matter). Pg. 1 (Doc. Nos. 17 & 25). On March 2, 2016, the Circuit 

Court granted Petitioners' Second Motion to consolidate which consolidated Wyoming County 

civil actions 15-C-129 through 15-C-132; 15-C-172; 15-C-212; 15-C-213 and 15-C-246 through 

15-C-248 with the Belcher matter, pursuant to Rule 42 of the West Virginia Rules of Civil 

Procedure. Pg. 5 (Doc. No. 221). Each of these civil actions involve common questions of law 

and fact because all of the Petitioners alleged property damage, private & public nuisance, 

trespass, negligent infliction of emotional distress, prima facie negligence, negligence & gross 

negligence, violations of the West Virginia Surface Coal Mining & Reclamation Act, West 

Virginia Code § 22-3-1, et seq. and a claim for punitive damages. l 

The original Scheduling Order for this matter was entered on October 31, 2014, regarding 

the claims of the initial sixteen (16) Petitioners against Respondents Dynamic and Mechel. Pg. 1 

Pg. 5 (Doc. No. 22). This Scheduling Order set the trial of this matter for February 23, 2015. 

Notwithstanding, on February 23, 2015, the parties were ready for trial, but inclement weather 

caused the cancellation of the trial. Thereafter, an Amended Scheduling Order was entered on 

May 12,2015. Pg. 4 (Doc. No. 151). This Amended Scheduling Order rescheduled the trial for 

April 11, 2016? 

I On October 8, 2014, the Petitioners filed their Motion for statutory injunctive relief for replacement water 
in accordance with the West Virginia Surface Coal Mining and Reclamation Act, West Virginia Code § 22-3-1, et 
seq. and a hearing was held on October 15,2014. Pg.I (Doc. Nos. 9 & 10). At the conclusion of the October IS, 
2014, hearing, the Circuit Court granted Petitioners' Motion for statutory injunctive relief for replacement water in 
accordance with the West Virginia Surface Coal Mining and Reclamation Act, West Virginia Code § 22-3-1, et seq. 
and an Order was entered on December 2, 2014. Pg. I (Doc. No. 27). At a hearing on March 2, 2016, by 
agreement, this Order was extended to the later ten (10) civil actions. Pg. 5 (Doc. No. 223). 

2 Afterward, Respondents Dynamic and Mechel filed a Motion for leave to file a Third-Party Complaint 
against insurance companies Houston International Insurance Group and Great Midwest Insurance Company which 
was granted, by Agreed Order, on February 27, 2015. Pg.2 (Doc. No. 88). This Third-Party Complaint ultimately 
was severed from this matter, by Agreed Order, on May 22, 2015. Pg. 4 (Doc. No. 154). 

On June 26, 2015, Respondents Dynamic and Mechel's then counsel filed a Motion to withdraw which was 
granted, by Agreed Order, on July 28,2015 and, as indicated in the Order, it became effective on August 2, 2015. 
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Before the April 11, 2016, trial, Respondents filed "Defendants' Motion to continue 

trial." Pg. 5 (Doc. No. 205). The Circuit Court granted, in part, "Defendants' Motion to 

continue friar' with respect to the ten (10) later consolidated civil actions, being Wyoming 

County civil actions 15-C-129 through 15-C-132; 15-C-172; 15-C-212; 15-C-213 and 15-C-246 

through 15-C-248. This matter otherwise is continued with respect to these ten (10) civil actions 

and denied, in part, "Defendants' Motion to continue friar' with respect to the initial sixteen (16) 

civil actions which were ready for trial on February 23, 2015, being Wyoming County civil 

actions 14-C-67 through 14-C-75; 14-C-I00 through 14-C-105 and 14-C-174. Pg. 5 (Doc. No. 

227). So, the Circuit Court directed that these identified initial sixteen (16) Petitioners and 

Respondents Dynamic and Mechel were to be prepared for the start of the scheduled trial on 

April 11, 2016.3 Id. 

On April 11,2016, jury selection began in the Circuit Court of Wyoming County for the 

Plaintiffs in consolidated Wyoming County civil actions 15-C-67 through 15-C-75; 15-C-I00 

through 15-C-I05 and 15-C-174 and the trial lasted through May 5,2016. Pgs. 1-278. On May 

5,2016, the jury returned sixteen (16) verdicts for Respondents Dynamic and Mechel. Pgs. 5-6 

(Doc. Nos. 242-56) & 279-310. After the return of the verdicts, Petitioners requested JNOV 

which is to be treated as a renewal of their Rule 50 Motion for Judgment as a matter of law. Pg. 

Pg. 4 (Doc. Nos. 160 & 162). Respondents Dynamic and Mechel's present counsel then became involved in the 
case. 

On October 21, 2015, Respondents Dynamic and Mechel filed a Motion for leave to file a Third-Party 
Complaint against Virginia Drilling Company, LLC (Virginia Drilling). Pg. 4 (Doc. No. 169). The Motion was 
granted, by Agreed Order, on February 8, 2016 and the Third-Party Complaint was filed and served on Virginia 
Drilling. Pg. 4 (Doc. No. 190). On March 14, 2016, Virginia Drilling filed an Answer to the Third-Party 
Complaint, a Counterclaim, a Third-Party Complaint against Justice Energy Company, Inc. and a Motion to dismiss 
or, in the alternative, to strike Defendants/Third-Party Plaintiffs' Third-Party Complaint. Pg.5 (Doc. Nos. 208-20). 

3 The Circuit Court also granted "Plaintiffs' Motion to sever Third-Party Complaint against Virginia 
Drilling Company, LLC, pursuant to Rule 14 of the West Virginia Rules ofCivil Procedure" and it otherwise was 
continued for further proceedings. Pg. 5 (Doc. Nos. 206 & 227). Moreover, the Circuit Court held in abeyance any 
decision on "Third-Party Defendant Virginia Drilling Company, LLC's, Motion to dismiss or, in the alternative, to 
strike Defendant/Third-Party Plaintiff's Third-Party Complainf' and was otherwise continued until further 
development by Respondents Dynamic and Mechel and Third-Party Defendant Virginia Drilling. !d. 
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310. On May 16, 2016, Petitioners filed their "Motion to set aside verdicts andfor a new trial," 

pursuant to Rule 59 of the West Virginia Rules of Civil Procedure, to set aside these verdicts and 

request a new trial. Pgs. 6 (Doc. No. 258) & 311-356. The Circuit Court conducted hearings on 

July 13,2016 and on December 14,2016. Pgs. 7 (Doc. Nos. 304-5) & 363-424. On January 20, 

2017, the Circuit Court entered an Order denying the Motion. Pgs. 7 (Doc. No. 301) & 512-513. 

Thereafter, Petitioners filed their Notice ofAppeal on February 22, 2017. Pg. 7 (Doc. No. 302). 

Statement of Facts 

On April 11, 2016, jury selection began in the Circuit Court of Wyoming County for the 

Petitioners in consolidated Wyoming County civil actions 15-C-67 through 15-C-75; 15-C-100 

through 15-C-I05 and 15-C-174. Pgs.8-173. Notwithstanding, on April 12, 2016, juror Mart 

Lane was selected as an alternate juror.4 Pgs. 149 & 170-1. At that time, Mr. Lane denied he 

had any interest with Dynamic or Mechel. Id. Mr. Lane also denied he had any bias or prejudice 

for or against any party. Pg. 151. On April 13, 2016, Mart Lane was seated as a juror. Pgs. 174

9. During the trial, defense corporate representative and local family pastor Lusk was observed 

talking with Mr. Lane whereby Mr. Lusk indicated to Mr. Lane that he knew him and Mr. Lane 

reciprocated as the two are acquaintances which was not disclosed during jury selection. Pgs. 

355-6 & 462-4. This conversation was brought to the Circuit Court's attention by Petitioners and 

Respondents' counsel downplayed the relationship between Mr. Lusk and Mr. Lane and based 

upon this explanation, the Circuit Court took no action, remarking "Wyoming is a small place, 

people know each other." Pgs. 488-9. However, Petitioners later learned at the December 14, 

2016, hearing on Petitioners' Post Trial Motion that Mr. Lusk, who sat at counsel table during 

jury selection and the trial, specifically knew Mart Lane and his family by name because he is 

the pastor of a local church for the past forty-two (42) years. Pgs.469-71. Mr. Lusk admitted 

4 The transcript identifies Mr. Lane's first name as "Mark," but his actual first name is "Mart." 

5 



that he conducted funerals for Mr. Lane's family members. Id. Prior to this time, Petitioners 

were unaware of this fact and would have attempted to strike Mr. Lane for cause if they had 

known this information. Pgs.311-356. 

Moreover, on April 12, 2016, which was the first day of trial, the courtroom was filled 

with approximately twenty (20) members of the United Mine Workers of America (UMWA) in 

attire which identified them as miners. Pgs. 88-89,320-4,344,423-424 (photographs) & 475-82 

(December 14,2016, hearing testimony of Mark Dwayne Lester and James Robert Jewell). The 

Circuit Court remarked: 

I think I'm in my 53rd year as a lawyer of the bar of this Court. 
I've practiced before this Court, many counties in West Virginia, 
and many courts in other states, state and federal, and I must say 
that I believe this to be the first time that I have ever seen an 
attempt to influence the outcome ofa trial by public display in a 
courtroom and, frankly, I'm at a little bit of a loss to figure out 
what to do, but from the best that I could determine is that we need 
to come to some resolution on this issue and I don't know how to 
do it. Perhaps the attendants at the trial, in the courtroom, are 
passive observers; but, if there has been an attempt to organize a 
demonstration in the courtroom for the jury, we must figure out 
some resolution to the problem, if it is a problem and it certainly is 
a different issue for me. Pgs. 324-5 (emphasis added). 

Afterward, Petitioners sought inquiry of two (2) of the attendees, Josh Roberts and Gary Trout. 

Pgs. 330-46. Mr. Roberts, a resident of Raleigh County, stated that he was a member of the 

UMW A and an unemployed coal miner, from another mine, who was ordered by Mr. Trout, his 

supervisor, to come to the trial. Pgs. 330-3. Mr. Roberts met Mr. Trout in Beckley and rode 

with him to the courthouse. Pgs. 330-46. According to Mr. Roberts, Mr. Trout told him the case 

was about a local mine which could impact UMWA jobs. Pgs. 330-46. Mr. Roberts, on the 

orders ofMr. Trout, attended jury selection the prior day. Pg.340. 
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Mr. Trout, a resident of Nicholas County, testified that he is employed by the UMWA in 

Charleston, Kanawha County, West Virginia. Pg. 339-45. Mr. Trout indicated that he came to 

"listen to the facts and support the workers down there" because over 100 UMW A members 

could lose their jobs. Pgs.340-2. Mr. Trout testified that he heard about the trial from "someone 

in D.C." and Joe Carter, District 17 Vice-President, directed him to gather other individuals to 

lend support. Pg.341. Mr. Carter also was believed to be present. Pg.353. Mr. Trout admitted 

that he informed other individuals attending the trial that he was going to wear UMW A apparel. 

Pg.344. 

The parties discussed a mistrial and the Circuit Court remarked that: 

If it were a criminal trial, there wouldn't be any question about we 
would do. I mean it is a foregone conclusion that we would 
declare a mistrial and everybody would go home. Pg. 338 

Then, the Circuit Court declared its decision not to declare a mistrial by stating: 

It is interesting, I served a number of years on the Supreme Court 
and served as Chief Justice and it was not uncommon there in that 
Court to have the seats filled by people who had interest in the 
outcome of the cases. I don't see us as being any different at a trial 
court level. The only resolution that I think exist is to declare a 
mistrial and to do so it places in jeopardy the right of people to 
come to this courthouse and sit in a courtroom and watch a trial, 
with the exception ofjuvenile issues, and I do not want to declare a 
mistrial. I'm inclined to think that we return to the courtroom and 
proceed. Pg.349. 

Later, the Circuit Court explained: 

There won't be any place for them to set if they don't set together. 
The courtroom is full of people and I think if they are to be treated 
as observers they are probably entitled to set wherever they please 
as long as they don't interfere with the Court. We've had some 
experience with that. I've had spectators within the last week 
believe they should be able to sit inside the bar of the Court. We 
did require them to remove themselves from that position, but 
otherwise I think that their choice of selection in a public place is 
also covered by the right of free expression. Pg.350. 
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Thereafter, each day, the UMWA miners, in mining regalia, would congregate outside the 

courthouse before trial and during breaks as the jurors entered and exited the courthouse. Pgs. 

405-6,423-4 (photographs), 459-61 & 475-82 (December 14, 2016, hearing testimony of Mark 

Dwayne Lester and James Robert Jewell). The UMW A miners also could be heard discussing 

the evidence of Petitioners' case as the jurors exited the courtroom which could be overheard by 

the jurors. Pgs. 417-8 & 461-2. 

Furthermore, on May 2, 2016, the UMW A miners tampered with the testimony of fact 

witness Eric Scott Sowards which was observed by counsel and Petitioners. 5 At the time, Mr. 

Sowards was a laid-off miner of Respondents since 2013. Pgs. 431-59. Mr. Sowards 

purportedly informed Petitioner Angela Jordan about his activities while employed with 

Respondents, including illegally burying slurry on the mountaintop above Petitioners' residences 

and outside Respondents' permits and he was subpoenaed by Petitioners to testify at trial about 

those activities. Pgs. 400-7, 411-2 & 418. On the day Mr. Sowards came to court, he was 

surrounded by UMWA miners who began discussing his testimony in an agitated manner. Pg. 

406-7, 416-7, 447-50, 460 & 475-82. Mr. Sowards then denied what he purportedly told Ms. 

Jordan and he was not called as a witness by Petitioners because of his change in testimony. Pgs. 

442 & 444-5. Afterward, Mr. Sowards began attending the trial with the other UMWA miners. 

Pgs. 405, 423-4 & 450-1. Prior to being subpoenaed, Mr. Sowards had not attended trial. Pg. 

416. After the trial, Mr. Sowards immediately was rehired by Respondents after an approximate 

four (4) year lay-off. Pg. 451. 

During the trial, Petitioners adduced substantial evidence including, but not limited to: 

deeds, water sample testing results, maps, photographs, charts, articles and information about 

Notices of Violations, permit information and pre-mining information which indicated that the 

5 The transcript identifies Mr. Soward's first name as "Derrick," but his actual first name is "Eric." 
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Defendants impacted their water. Pgs. 183-224 & 262-77. In addition, the Petitioners called 

numerous witnesses, including, but not limited to: each Petitioner, a representative of the West 

Virginia Department of Environmental Protection (WVDEP), mining expert Jack Spadaro, 

environmental engineer Dr. Scott Simonton and geologist Yoram Eckstein. !d. The plain 

preponderance of the evidence indicated that Petitioners' water had been impacted by the mining 

activities of Respondents. However, the jury returned verdicts for Respondents. The Circuit 

Court should have granted Petitioners' Motion to set aside the verdicts and granted a new trial, 

but the Circuit Court denied the Motion. Petitioners now seek reversal of that decision. 

v. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The sixteen (16) verdicts returned for Respondents on May 5, 2016, will result in a 

miscarriage of justice and were against the plain preponderance of the evidence. In accordance 

with Rule 59 of the West Virginia Rules of Civil Procedure, the Circuit Court of Wyoming 

County should have granted Petitioners' "Motion to set aside verdicts andfor a new trial." First, 

the verdicts will result in a miscarriage ofjustice because individuals, agents or employees of the 

Respondents, intimidated the jury and tampered with the testimony of at least one witness which 

was observed by counsel and Petitioners. The agents or employees of the Respondents 

substantially interfered with Petitioners' prosecution of their case and right to a fair trial which, 

in part, resulted in the verdicts for the Respondents. Secondly, the verdicts will result in a 

miscarriage of justice because defense corporate representative and local family pastor Tom 

Lusk and Mart Lane, the individual who later became Juror number 5, had a church-based 

pastoral type relationship which was not disclosed during voir dire or jury selection. Petitioners 

would have attempted to strike Mr. Lane had they known of this disqualifying relationship which 

the Respondents and Mr. Lane failed to disclose. The failure to disclose this relationship, in part, 
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resulted in the· verdicts for the Respondents. Lastly, the verdicts were against the plain 

preponderance of the evidence and the Circuit Court should set them aside and grant a new trial. 

Petitioners respectfully request that this Court reverse the January 20, 2017, Order of the Circuit 

Court of Wyoming County which denied Petitioners' Motion and set aside the verdicts and grant 

a new trial. 

VI. STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Based upon the assignments of error set forth by Petitioners, counsel for Petitioners 

believe that oral argument is necessary under Rule 18(a)(4) of the West Virginia Rules of 

Appellate Procedure because the facts and legal arguments are not presented adequately in the 

briefs and record on appeal and the decisional process would be aided significantly by oral 

argument. In accordance with Rules 19 and 20 of the West Virginia Rules of Appellate 

Procedure, oral argument should be limited to twenty (20) minutes. 

VII. STANDARD OF REVIEW 

This Court reviews a trial court's rulings on a Motion for a new trial under an abuse of 

discretion standard. In re State Public Building Asbestos Litigation, 193 W.Va. 119, 124,454 

S.E.2d 413, 418 (1994); Tennant v. Marion Health Care Foundation, Inc., 194 W.Va. 97, 104, 

459 S.E.2d 374,381 (1995). As such, in reviewing challenges to findings and rulings made by a 

trial court, this Court applies a two-pronged deferential standard of review. Tennant, Supra. 

This Court reviews the rulings of the trial court concerning a new trial and its conclusion as to 

the existence of reversible error under an abuse of discretion standard and reviews the trial 

court's underlying factual findings under a clearly erroneous standard. Id. Questions of law are 

subject to a de novo review. Id. 
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While a trial court's decision to grant or deny a Motion for a new trial is entitled to great 

respect and weight, the trial court's decision will be reversed on appeal when it is clear that the 

trial court acted under some misapprehension of the law or the evidence. Syl. pt. 2, Harnish v. 

Carra, 237 W.Va. 609, 788 S.E.2d 750 (2016) (citing Syl. pt. 4, Sanders v. Georgia-Pacific 

Corp., 159 W.Va. 621,225 S.E.2d 218 (1976)). 

VIII. ARGUMENT 

1. The Circuit Court of Wyoming County erred in not granting the Motion to 

set aside the jury verdict and grant a new trial because there was jury interference and 

witness intimidation by agents or employees of the Respondents. 

While this Court has not addressed jury interference and witness intimidation in a civil 

context, it has addressed these issues in a criminal context. In State v. Franklin, the defendant 

was indicted and tried for the offense of driving under the influence of alcohol, resulting in 

death. Id., 174 W.Va. 469, 327 S.E.2d 449 (1985). On the first morning of trial, the Sheriff 

handed a potential juror a large, bright yellow lapel button bearing the acronym MADD 

(Mothers Against Drunk Driving). The potential juror was excused and the Sheriff "censured," 

but the Sheriff and ten to thirty MADD demonstrators remained highly visible in court 

throughout the trial, all prominently displaying their yellow MADD buttons and all sitting 

directly in front of the jury. Some cradled sleeping infants in their laps and all prominently 

displayed their MADD buttons. The trial court refused to grant defense counsel's repeated 

requests for a mistrial, refused to order the spectators to remove their buttons and refused to take 

any other action against the overwhelming MADD presence in the courtroom. 

The defendant alleged that it was reversible error for the trial court to deny his Motion for 

a mistrial because of the presence and activities of the representatives of MADD. Franklin, 174 
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W.Va. at 474, 327 S.E.2d at 454. The defendant asserted that his right to a fair trial by an 

impartial jury was denied him. This Court, under the circumstances of the case, agreed. The 

trial court conducted an extensive voir dire on the subject of MADD and ascertained that 

fourteen of the twenty members of the jury panel knew about the organization's activities and 

goals, including one member of MADD and another admitted to being very uncomfortable 

sitting on the jury with members of the organization opposite her. However, other than excusing 

these two individuals from sitting on the jury, the trial court refused to take any other action 

against the MADD presence. 

In Franklin, this Court determined that while Article III, § 14 of the West Virginia 

Constitution is a clear constitutional mandate that requires an open public trial in every criminal 

case, this provision guarantees, both to the accused and to the public, that criminal trials are 

conducted unabashedly, openly and fairly. Franklin, 174 W.Va. at 474, 327 S.E.2d at 455. The 

Franklin Court was concerned that the right of public access to a criminal trial be coordinated 

with the constitutional right of a defendant to a fair trial. Id. (citing Syl. pt. 1, State ex rei. 

Herold Mail Co. v. Hamilton, 165 W.Va. 103,267 S.E.2d 544 (1980)). An important element in 

this process is insuring that the jury is always insulated, at least to the best of the trial court's 

ability, from every source of pressure or prejudice. 

The Franklin Court distinguished the holding in State v. Richey, 171 W.Va. 342, 298 

S.E.2d 879 (1982) from the case. Id. In Richey, the defendant was tried for the sexual assault of 

a high school student. During the victim's testimony a group of the victim's peers seated 

themselves in the courtroom as spectators. The defendant argued that the presence of the 

students psychologically influenced the jurors against him. The Richey Court, in syllabus point 

7, held that: "[w]here a defendant moves to exclude members of the public from observing his 
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jury trial, the ultimate question is whether, if the trial is left open, there is a clear likelihood that 

there will be irreparable damage to the defendant's right to a fair trial." Id. (citing Richey, 171 

W.Va. 345, 298 S.E.2d at 882). In Richey, the Court could not find any irreparable damage to 

the defendant's right to a fair trial. The Richey Court noted:

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