RESPONSE TO PETITIONERS' ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

1. The unanimous jury verdicts were not in any way tainted by the presence of 

individuals in the Courtroom who listened to the case without incident, demonstration or 

outburst. The spectators were not agents or employees of the Respondents and they were not 

paid or in any way compensated for their attendance in the audience. There was also not credible 

evidence that the individuals tampered with any testimony of proposed witnesses at trial. 

2. The unanimous jury verdicts were not adversely affected by the distant, passing 

knowledge of Juror, Mart Lane, and the respondent's corporate representative, Tom Lusk.

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The Respondents assert that the decision of the Circuit Court of Wyoming County to 

deny the Petitioners' motions was supported by the evidence of record and was in accordance 

with law. The presence of UMW A members who observed the trial had nothing to do with the 

ultimate outcome of the case. The Petitioners' arguments concerning Juror, Mart Lane, are 

without merit and were waived by Petitioners' counsel by his failure to request a hearing before 

the Court at a time when Mr. Lane could have been removed as a juror. Simply stated, 
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Petitioners' counsel demanded that Mr. Lane be a juror in this case until the jury returned 16 

unanimous verdicts in the Respondents' favor. As such, the jury verdicts and the orders of the 

Circuit Court of Wyoming County must be affirmed. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Pursuant to the criteria set out in Rule 18(a) of the West Virginia Rules of Appellate 

Procedure, undersigned counsel does not believe that an oral argument before the Court is 

necessary. 

ARGUMENT 

I. 	 The Trial Court's Failure to Set Aside the 16 Jury Verdicts and Grant a New 
Trial Based Upon the Attendance of UMWA Members in the Audience at 
Trial Was Not Clearly Erroneous and Was in Accordance With Law. 

Initially, it should be pointed out that contrary to the arguments of the Petitioners, the 

UMWA members who attended the trial and sat in the audience were not employees or agents of 

the Respondents and there was absolutely no credible evidence of witness intimidation. UMWA 

members who were questioned by Petitioners' counsel indicated that they attended the trial to 

gather information about the case and show their support for UMW A members who were 

working at the Dynamic Energy, Inc. surface mine. The UMWA members were not requested to 

attend the trial by the Respondents and their attendance was peaceful and non-distracting. 

The evidence of record also fails to support a finding that the UMWA members 

intimidated any witness and there is no credible evidence that UMWA members discussed the 

case, where the discussions could be heard by the jurors. At the post-trial hearing on December 

14, 2016, Petitioner, Paulette Blankenship, testified that she heard the UMWA members 

discussing the case in a loud voice, such that it could be heard by the jurors. However, on cross

examination, she admitted that no such assertion had been made in her affidavit which was filed 
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in support of the Petitioners' post-trial motion and no such occurrence had been reported to the 

Court at the time of its alleged occurrence. Appendix pg. 355-356, 466. Clearly, Blankenship's 

assertion is self-serving and was not credible. Petitioners' assertions of witness intimidation 

were likewise self-serving and not credible. Petitioner, Angela Jordan, testified that a former 

Dynamic Energy employee, Mr. Sowards, told her that he had dumped refuse material into the 

hollow fill at the site. However, Mr. Sowards vehemently testified that he did not tell Ms. Jordan 

that he had dumped refuse material into the hollow fill and also stated that he had never done so. 

When Mr. Sowards was questioned by Petitioners' counsel on the day he was to testify and he 

again stated that he had not dumped refuse material into the hollow fill, Petitioners' counsel, 

without any proof, then alleged that Mr. Sowards had been intimidated by the UMW A members 

and coached to lie about the issue. Mr. Sowards denied that he was intimidated and other 

members of the UMW A testified that Mr. Sowards was told to not be nervous and to tell the 

truth if called to testify. The Petitioners produced no credible proof to the contrary. 

Petitioners' counsel also wants to suggest as support for his argument, that after the trial 

was over, Mr. Sowards was recalled after a four year layoff. However, Mr. Sowards clearly 

testified that he was the first person on the UMW A panel to be recalled and that the company 

recalled him to work when it needed additional truck drivers. 

The cases cited by the Petitioners provide no guidance on this issue and are easily 

distinguishable from the fact situation at hand. The Petitioners cited this Court to the decision in 

Stale v. Franklin, 174 W. Va. 469, 327 S.E.2d 449 (l985); however, that decision involves a 

criminal case and the facts involved a juror and the Sheriff who were wearing MADD buttons. 

The case at hand only involves citizens who attended the trial and wore clothing that identified 

them as UMWA members. The wearing of clothing identifying individuals in the audience as 
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UMWA members did nothing to pressure or prejudice the jury. In fact, there was very little 

testimony at trial that identified the Respondents' mining operation as a union or non-union 

mine. Relying upon this Court's statements in State v. Richey, 171 W. Va. 342,298 S.E.2d 879 

(1982), "the ultimate question is whether, if the .. , hearing is left open, there is a clear likelihood 

that there will be irreparable damage to the Defendant's right to a fair trial." The appearance of 

the UMWA members, wearing clothes that identified them as such, did not clearly establish that 

the Petitioners would not get a fair trial. 

II. 	 The Trial Court's Failure to Set Aside the 16 Jury Verdicts and Grant a New 
Trial Based Upon an Alleged Relationship Between a Juror and One of the 
Respondents' Corporate Representatives Was Not Clearly Erroneous, Was 
Supported by the Facts and Was in Accordance With Law. 

As pointed out by the Petitioners, "a new trial will be granted only when the prospective 

juror's willful or inadvertent failure during voir dire, to disclose relevant information suggests 

actual or probable bias or prejudice, not merely because the complaining party has been, in 

effect, denied a preemptory strike of a particular prospective jury." McGlone v. Superior 

Trucking Co.• Inc., 178 W. Va. 659, 669; 363 S.E. 2d 736, 746 (1987). Additionally, this Court 

has held that an order to grant a new trial based upon the alleged disqualification or misconduct 

of a juror, the moving party must establish that the juror was disqualified, the moving party was 

diligent in his or her efforts to ascertain the disqualification and prejudice resulted from the 

juror's participation. West Virginia Human Rights Commission v. Tenpin Lounge. Inc., 158 W. 

Va. 349, 357; 211 S.E.2d 349, 354 (1975). Upon review of the record and for the reasons set out 

below, the Trial court did not abuse its discretion in denying the Petitioners' post-trial motions 

on this issue. 
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Initially, it must be pointed out that the subject juror, Mart Lane ("Lane"), did not fail to 

disclose relevant information during jury selection regarding his knowledge ofthe Respondents' 

corporate representative, Tom Lusk ("Lusk"). At no time during jury selection did Petitioners' 

counselor the Court ask any of the prospective jurors if they knew or had any relationship with 

the Respondents' corporate representatives. Petitioners' counsel only asked the prospective 

jurors whether or not the prospective juror had family members or close friends that worked for 

the Respondents. Appendix pg. 27, 118. It also is clear that Land and Lusk are not "dose 

friends" and were only mere acquaintances, at best. As such, Lane did not fail to honestly 

disclose information regarding his knowledge of Lusk during voir dire. Lusk testified during the 

post-trial hearing that he knew Land and other members of his family and that he had preached at 

some of the funerals of the Lane family. He also testified that Lane was not a member of the 

church where he preached and they did not socialize together in any way. Clearly, Lane was not 

disqualified, per se, because he knew Lusk. 

Additionally, the Petitioners were not diligent in pursuing the disqualification of Lane as 

a juror and they cannot now daim error. Had it not been for Petitioners' counsel, Lane would 

not have even been seated as a deciding juror in this case. Lane was originally, Juror Number 8, 

the second of two alternates. However, when a juror had to be excused very early in the trial, the 

first alternate juror was not made a deciding juror because of the demand of the Petitioners' 

counsel. Counsel, Kevin Thompson, told the Court, "Let's get him out of here (Bailey) and let's 

put Mart Lane on the front row." Appendix pg. 177. Had it not been for this statement, Juror 

Number 7, the first alternate, would have moved into seat number 5 and would have been a part 

of the jury deciding the case instead of Lane. 
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Also, when the issue of the relationship between Lusk and Lane was brought to the 

court's attention, the Petitioners didn't diligently inquire into the alleged relationship at that time 

and didn't diligently pursue disqualification. This brief conversation during a break between 

Lusk and Lane was immediately brought to the Court's attention and after some discussion, the 

Court took no action, remarking that "Wyoming County was a small place, people know each, 

other". Appendix pg. 488-489. However, Petitioners' counsel also took no further action in 

response to the Court's comments. Counsel did not request that Mr. Lane be immediately 

stricken as a juror, nor did he ask the Court for further inquiry into the exact relationship between 

Mr. Lusk and Mr. Lane. Appendix pg. 489. The same inquiry that took place post-trial on 

December 114, 2016 could have taken place when the issue was first brought to the Court's 

attention and at a time when Petitioners' counsel could have requested that Mr. Lane be stricken 

and that Alternate Juror No.7 be seated. 

Lastly, the Petitioners can point to no prejudice that resulted from Lane's participation as 

a juror. The jury, after almost 4 weeks of trial, returned 16 unanimous jury verdicts in favor ot 

the Respondents. Lane was just one of the jury panel and was not the jury foreman. There is 

simply nothing in the record to suggest that Lane's participation as a juror somehow prejudiced 

the Petitioners. As a result, the Petitioners cannot establish any of the factors set out in Tenpin 

Lounge to support their Motion to Set Aside the Jury Verdicts and For a New Trial. 

III. 	 The Trial Court's Refusal to Set Aside the 16 Jury Verdicts and Grant a New 
Trial Was Not Clearly Erroneous, Was Supported by the Facts and Was in 
Accordance With Law. 

The case law cited by the Petitioners correctly sets out the legal standard for setting aside 

a jury verdict and ordering a new trial. However, upon review of the evidence introduced at trial, 
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it is overwhelmingly obvious that the Petitioners failed to meet that standard and that the Trial 


Court's denial of their Motion to Set Aside the Verdicts and for a New Trial was proper. 


It is important to note that the Petitioners cite to no specific items of proof which would 

overcome the assumptions and presumptions that the Trial Court must make when reviewing a 

motion to set aside a jury verdict and for a new trial. The fact of the matter remains that the 

evidence did not support a jury verdict in favor of the Petitioners. 

As set out earlier, the Petitioners relied upon experts who had a scripted theory of how 

the Petitioners' water wells were affected by the Respondents' mining operation; however, they 

had no data to back up those scripted theories. The Respondents on the other hand, provided 

hard data such as water samples from the mining operation which clearly showed that the water 

coming off the mining operation did not match the water in the petitioners' water wells. The 

Respondents also produced background water data which clearly showed that the Petitioners' 

water wells were less than pristine, prior to any mining by the Respondents. The Petitioners also 

fail to acknowledge that the West Virginia DEP, an agency mandated to cite all violations of 

laws and regulations, determined that the Respondents' mining operation had not adversely 

affected the Petitioners' water wells. Clearly, the evidence of record supports the decision of the 

Circuit Court of Wyoming County which denied the Petitioners' Motion to Set Aside the Jury 

Verdicts and for a New Trial. 

CONCLUSION 

Based upon the foregoing, the Respondents, Dynamic Energy, Inc. and Mechel 

Bluestone, Inc., respectfully move this Court to affirm the jury verdicts and the Orders of the 

Circuit Court of Wyoming County in favor of the Respondents.